
AGENDA 
GROUNDWATER BANKING JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
May 13, 2024 

10:30 AM 
 

Rosedale Rio-Bravo Water Storage District   Irvine Ranch Water District 
849 Allen Road                             15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93314                      Irvine, CA 92618 
         2nd Floor Committee Room 
 
This meeting will be made available to the public telephonically/electronically. 
 
To virtually attend the meeting and to be able to view any presentations or additional 
materials provided at the meeting, please join online using the link and information 
below: 
 
Via Web:   https://zoom.us/j/83815086560 
                       Meeting Number (Access Code): 838 1508 6560 
                       Meeting Password: 982590 
   Telephone Dial In: (669) 900-6833 

 
As a courtesy to the other participants, please mute your phone when you are not 

speaking. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: Participants joining the meeting will be placed into the lobby when the 
Board enters closed session. Participants who remain in the “lobby” will automatically 
be returned to the open session of the Board once the closed session has concluded. 
Participants who join the meeting while the Board is in closed session will be placed in 
the waiting room. When the Board has returned to open session, the participants will be 
automatically added to the meeting. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 10:30 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Directors Pierucci, Selvidge, Reinhart, Swan  
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
NOTICE 

 
If you wish to address the Board of Directors on any item, please submit a request to 
speak via the “chat” feature available when joining the meeting virtually.  Remarks are 
limited to three minutes per speaker on each subject.  You may also submit a public 
comment in advance of the meeting by emailing mmisuraca@rrbwsd.com before 5:00 
p.m. on May 12, 2024. 
 

ALL VOTES SHALL BE TAKEN BY A ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83815086560?pwd=NkRndHgrM25FTFE5QWtZRXhsKzVNUT09


Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 13, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

1. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 
 

a) Written: 
b) Oral: 

 
2. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 

.  
 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

a) Meeting Minutes February 5, 2024 

4. JPA ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
a) Consideration of 3rd Quarter Budget to Actual- FYE June 30, 2024 

(Eileen) 
b) Consideration of FYE June 30, 2025 Budget (Neveen) 
c) Consideration of FYE June 30, 2024 Audit Proposal (Eileen) 

 

5. KERN FAN GROUNDWATER STORAGE PROJECT 
 

a) Engineering (Dan) 
i. Design Update (Dan) 
ii. Conveyance Alternatives Evaluation – Consideration of Budget 

Augmentation (Dan) 
iii. Construction Update (Dan) 
iv. Consideration of Bids for West Enos Recharge Facilities - Structures 

(Dan) 
v. Consideration of Change Order – Highway 58 Culvert Casing (Dan) 

b) Grant Funding Update (Trent/Paul) 
c) Small Storage Funding Concept (Dan) 
d) State Agreements Update (Trent/Paul) 

 

6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of 
Directors or staff may ask questions for clarification, make brief announcements, 
and make brief reports on his/her own activities.  The Board or a Board member 
may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, 
request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or 



Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority Board of Directors’ Meeting 
May 13, 2024 
Page 3 

direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  Such matters may 
be brought up under the General Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments. 

8. CLOSED SESSION

9. OPEN SESSION

General Counsel may announce any reportable actions taken during Closed 
Session. 

10. ADJOURN

**************************************************************************************************** 
Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a 
majority of the members of the above-named Board in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open 
meeting of the Board are available for public inspection by contacting Megan Misuraca at mmisuraca@rrbwsd.com.  If such 
writings are distributed to members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available to the public at the 
same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one hour prior to, or during, the 
meeting, they will be available electronically during the meeting.  

Accommodations: Upon request, the Authority will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, and 
reasonable disability-related modification or accommodation to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in and provide 
comments at the meeting. Please submit a request, including your name, phone number and/or email address, and a description of 
the modification, accommodation, or alternative format requested at least two days before the meeting.  Requests should be emailed 
to mmisuraca@rrbwsd.com. Requests made by mail must be received at least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted 
whenever possible and resolved in favor of accessibility. 

DECLARATION OF POSTING: I, Megan Misuraca, declare under penalty of perjury, that I am 
employed by the Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District and I posted the foregoing Agenda 
at the District Office on or before May 9, 2024.  I, Kristine Swan, declare under penalty of 
perjury, that I am employed by the Irvine Ranch Water District and I posted the foregoing 
Agenda at the District Office on or before May 9, 2024. 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
GROUNDWATER BANKING JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 5, 2024 
2:00 PM 

DIRECTORS AND ALTERNATES PRESENT 

Roy Pierucci 
Peer Swan  
Doug Reinhart 
Jason Selvidge 

DIRECTORS ABSENT 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Doug Gosling- JPA Legal Counsel 
Dan Bartel- RRBWSD 
Dan Raytis- RRBWSD Legal Counsel 
Megan Misuraca- RRBWSD 
Fiona Sanchez- IRWD 
Eileen Lin- IRWD 
Paul Weghorst- IRWD 
Kent Morris- IRWD 
Paul Cook- IRWD 
Wyatt Clarke- IRWD 
Neveen Adly- IRWD 
Gabby Wang- IRWD 
Herbert Ng- IRWD 
Vlad Li- IRWD 
Bob Huang- IRWD 

CALL TO ORDER 
President Pierucci called the meeting to order at approximately 2:00 p.m. 

PUBLIC COMMENT NOTICE 
There were no public comments. 

1. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD
a).  Written: None.
b).  Oral: None.

2. ITEMS RECEIVEDTOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED
None.

3. CONSENT ITEMS
a) Meeting Minutes December 7, 2023



Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
February 5, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

 

A motion was made by Director Selvidge with a second by Director 
Reinhart to adopt the consent items. A roll call vote was taken and the 
motion unanimously passed. 
 
4. JPA ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL REPORT 

a) Consideration of 2nd Quarter Budget to Actual- FYE June 30, 2024 and 
Cash Call- Upon the Board’s review of Ms. Lin’s report a motion was 
made by Director Swan with a second by Director Reinhart to receive 
and file the 2nd Quarter FYE June 30, 2024 budget to actual report with 
no cash call requested at this time. A roll call vote was taken and the 
motion unanimously passed. 

b) Consideration of Termination of Emergency Declaration- Mr. Gosling 
reported on updated water and emergency conditions. A motion was 
made by Director Selvidge with a second by Director Reinhart to 
terminate the emergency action under Resolution No. 2023-03. A roll 
call vote was taken and the motion unanimously passed. 
 

5. KERN FAN GROUNDWATER STORAGE PROJECT 
a) Engineering  

i. Design Update- Mr. Bartel briefed the Board on the latest 
design efforts. 

ii. Conveyance Alternatives- Mr. Bartel reviewed 
correspondence sent to Kern County Water Agency from the 
JPA regarding Aqueduct Capacity Analysis.  

iii. Construction Update- Mr. Bartel reported staff had 
completed the cultural meeting and training and construction 
would begin in the next week. 

b) Grant Funding Update- Ms. Sanchez briefed the Board on the latest 
grant funding opportunities and reported staff was preparing a 
presentation for the California Water Commission in April.  

c) State Agreements Update- SEIR Pulse Flows- Ms. Sanchez briefed 
the Board on latest efforts to obtain agreements with the Department of 
Water Resources including the SEIR. 

 
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

No report. 
 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
None. 

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 

At 2:47 p.m. President Pierucci announced the Board would enter closed 
session. The Board reconvened to open session at 3:03 p.m. 

 
 
 



Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
February 5, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

 

9. OPEN SESSION 
Mr. Gosling announced there were no reportable actions taken during 
closed session.  
 

10. ADJOURN 
Director Pierucci adjourned the meeting at 3:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Authority Secretary 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



May 13, 2024 
Prepared by: Fiona 
Sanchez/ Vladimir Li/ 
Elizabeth Pham 
Agenda Item: 4a 

FY 2023-24 Quarterly Actual to Budget Results 

DISCUSSION: 

The quarterly unaudited actual to budget and forecast results for capital and operating 
expenditures for the nine-month period ending March 31, 2024, is attached as Exhibit 
“A”.   

The nine-month year to date total expenditures were $190K compared to a budget of 
$3M. Actual expenditures were $1.7M or 57% under budget.  This is primarily due to 
lower expenditures related to the timing of engineering design and construction of the 
capital project.  Construction of the permanent facilities was delayed to establish 
temporary facilities at West Enos in order to maximize recharge benefits in 2023.  
Additionally, the GBJPA received $1.1M in unbudgeted grant revenue from the Bureau 
of Reclamation’s Small Storage Program. Exhibit “A” provides additional comments. 

The full year budget projection is $3.1M compared to the full year forecast of $91.5K 
This is primarily due to the delay in construction of the permanent facilities and 
forecasted receipt of $1.3M in federal grant funding revenue. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and File. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – FY 2023-24 Actual to Budget Results (Unaudited) 



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



Actual 

03/31/24

(Unaudited)

Budget 

03/31/24

Budget to 

Actual 

(Over)/Under

Budget 

Variance %

Approved FY 

2023-24 

Budget

Forecast Full 

Year

FY 2023-24

Forecast 

(Over)/ Under FY2023-24 Budget Variance/Forecast Comments

Kern Fan Groundwater Capital Project

# Engineering - Planning and Design Staff 40,800$    78,300$    37,500$    48% 104,400$    54,400$    (50,000)$    Temporary Basins/Timing of Expenditures

# Grant Administration and Reporting 5,000 5,100 100 2% 6,700 6,700 - 

# JPA Administration 35,200             43,200             8,000 19% 57,600             47,000 (10,600) 

# Supplemental Environmental Impact Report 200 14,200             14,000             99% 15,200             200 (15,000) Timing, moved to FY 2024/25

# Agreements with State Agencies 15,000             15,300             300 2% 20,400             16,000 (4,400) 

# Engineering Design - Consultants 75,200             280,000          204,800          73% 310,000 80,000 (230,000)            Temporary Basins/Timing of Expenditures

# Engineering CA&I - Outside 12,900             108,400          95,500             88% 108,400 51,600 (56,800) Temporary Basins/Timing of Expenditures

# Construction 620,400          1,993,200       1,372,800       69% 1,993,200       827,200            (1,166,000)         Temporary Basins/Timing of Expenditures

# Legal JPA 8,000 48,600             40,600             84% 72,300             10,500 (61,800) Timing, moved to FY 2024/25

# Development of Agreement with FWS - - - 0% 7,500 - (7,500) Timing, moved to FY 2024/25

# Development of Agreement with DWR - 5,000 5,000 100% 10,000             - (10,000) Timing, moved to FY 2024/25

# Environmental 30,700             8,400 (22,300)           -265% 8,400 30,700 22,300 NEPA for Phase 1 completed

# Permitting 2,700 20,000             17,300             87% 20,000             2,700 (17,300) Timing of expenditures

Capital Project Total 846,100          2,619,700       1,773,600       68% 2,734,100       1,127,000         (1,607,100)         

Operating Expense

West Enos Recharge Facility 394,800          319,800          (75,000)           -23% 319,800 394,800            75,000 Temporary Basins.  Complete as of 12/31/23

# Administration/Management 29,700             53,100             23,400             44% 70,900             55,000 (15,900) Lower staff time than anticipated. More hours anticipated for FY end

# Audit 5,800 5,800 - 0% 5,800 5,800 - 

# Bank Charges 4,300 2,400 (1,900) -79% 3,200 5,900 2,700 Bank fees higher than anticipated.

# Insurance 4,800 5,200 400 8% 6,900 6,900 - 

# Membership 1,000 1,000 - 0% 1,000 1,000 - 

# Website Maintenance 900 1,000 100 10% 1,000 900 (100) 

Operating Expense Total 441,300          388,300          (53,000)           -14% 408,600          470,300            61,700 

Revenue

# Interest Revenue (4,300) (2,400) 1,900 79% (3,200) (5,900) (2,700) Interest revenue higher than anticipated.

Grants (1,092,700)      - - 0% - (1,300,000) - USBR Small Storage Grant

Revenue Total (1,097,000)      (2,400)             1,900 79% (3,200)             (1,305,900)       (2,700) 

Total 190,400$    3,005,600$     1,722,500$     57% 3,139,500$     291,400$    (1,548,100)$     

Actual to Budget Results (Unaudited)

Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority  

Exhibit "A"

(in hundreds)

Fiscal Year 2023-24



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



GBJPA Proposed FY2023-24 Budget.docx

May 13, 2024 
Prepared by: Fiona Sanchez/ Vladimir 

Li/ Elizabeth Pham 
Agenda Item:  4b 

GBJPA Proposed FY2024-25 Budget and Cash Call 

DISCUSSION: 

The proposed $11.2M budget for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 is attached as Exhibit 
“A” and includes both capital and operating expenses.  

As shown in Exhibit “A”, the proposed $11.2M budget reflects an increase of $8.1M 
compared to the prior year’s $3.1M approved budget. The increase is primarily due to 
the delay in construction of the permanent Phase 1 facilities in order to construct 
temporary facilities at the West Enos property, and lower expenditures in engineering 
design and construction costs for FY2023-24.   

Based on the remaining forecasted expenditures for FY 2023-24 and the proposed 
FY2024-25 first quarter budget, a cash call for $3M is requested in May 2024.  Each 
partner will be requested to fund $1.5M into the GBJPA bank account in May 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board approve the adoption of the FY2024-25 budget and the May 2024 cash 
call.   

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – GBJPA Proposed FY2024-25 Budget 



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



Unaudited FY 

2023-24 Actual 

(As of 3/31/24)

FY 2023-24  

Full Year 

Forecast (Q3 

Numbers)

Approved 

FY 2023-24 

Budget

Proposed

FY 2024-25 

Budget

$ Increase 

/(Decrease) from 

PY Budget

% Increase 

/(Decrease) from 

PY Budget

Kern Fan Groundwater Capital Project

Engineering - Planning and Design Staff 40,800$     54,400$     104,400$    81,000$     (23,400)$     -22%

CWC and USBR Feasibility Studies - - - 2,000 2,000 100%

Grant Administration and Reporting 5,000 6,700 6,700 14,300 7,600 113%

JPA Administration 35,200 47,000 57,600 55,500 (2,100) -4%

Supplemental Environmental Impact Report 200 200 15,200 23,300 8,100 53%

Agreements with State Agencies 15,000 16,000 20,400 14,300 (6,100) -30%

Engineering Design - Consultants 75,200 80,000 310,000 1,230,000 920,000 297%

Engineering CA&I - Outside 12,900 51,600 108,400 1,320,000 1,211,600 1118%

Construction 620,400 827,200 1,993,200 10,755,000           8,761,800 440%

Legal JPA 8,000 10,500 72,300 15,500 (56,800) -79%

Development of Agreement with FWS - - 7,500 - (7,500) -100%

Development of Agreement with DWR - - 10,000 - (10,000) -100%

Environmental 30,700 30,700 8,400 95,300 86,900 1035%

Property Pre-Acquisition - - - 50,000 50,000 100%

Permitting 2,700 2,700 20,000 2,000 (18,000) -90%

Capital Project Total 846,100 1,127,000           2,734,100 13,658,200           10,924,100           400%

Operating Expense

West Enos Recharge Facility 394,800 394,800 319,800 - (319,800) -100%

Administration/Management 29,700 55,000 70,900 70,700 (200) 0%

Audit 5,800 5,800 5,800 9,500 3,700 64%

Bank Charges 4,300 5,900 3,200 6,000 2,800 88%

Insurance 4,800 6,900 6,900 6,900 - 0%

Membership 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,100 100 10%

Website Maintenance 900 900 1,000 1,000 - 0%

Operating Expense Total 441,300 470,300 408,600 95,200 (313,400) -77%

Non-Operating Income

Interest Revenue (4,300) (5,900) (3,200) (6,000) (2,800) 88%

Grants (1,092,700)                      (1,300,000) - (2,500,000) (2,500,000)            100%

Non-Operating Income Total (1,097,000)            (1,305,900)          (3,200) (2,506,000)            (2,502,800)            78213%

Total 190,400$    291,400$    3,139,500$     11,247,400$     8,107,900$     258%

Exhibit "A"

Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority 

Proposed Budget

Proposed Budget FY 2024-25



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



 GBJPA audit firm recommendation

May 13, 2024 
Prepared by: Eileen Lin 
Agenda Item:  4C 

Recommendation of Independent Audit Firm 

DISCUSSION: 

Section 9b of the Bylaws of Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority (GBJPA) states 
that the Board of Directors shall select an Auditor in the manner provided by law.  
California government code Section 6505 requires Joint Power Authorities to have an 
annual independent audit and make the audited financial statements available on its 
website. 

Last Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23, Davis Farr, LLP conducted the audit for the GBJPA.  Their 
audit proposal for this FY2023-24 is attached as “Exhibit A”.  The proposal is for a fixed 
price fee of $5,980 plus possible Single Audit fees relating to the USBR grant not to 
exceed $3,500.  Staff is familiar with Davis Farr, LLP and recommends them due to their 
professionalism, partner and staff competency.    

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board confirm the selection of Davis Farr, LLP to perform the audit for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2024. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – Davis Farr, LLP audit proposal 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



 

 

  

 
 

   

  
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

April 2, 2024

Groundwater Banking  Joint  Powers Authority
Neveen Adly
15600 Sand Canyon Ave
Irvine, CA 92619

We are pleased to confirm the arrangements of our engagement and the nature of the services
we will provide  Groundwater Banking  Joint  Powers Authority  (the “Authority”).

You have requested that we audit  the business-type activities  of the  Authority,  as of  June 30,
2024  and  for  the  year  then  ended  and  the  related  notes,  which  collectively  comprise  the
Authority’s basic financial statements  as listed in the table of contents.  In addition, we will
audit the  Authority’s compliance over major federal award programs for the  fiscal year  ended
June 30, 2024, as necessary.

Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion
unit and an opinion on compliance regarding the  Authority’s major federal award programs.
The  objectives  of  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements  are  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance
about  whether  the  financial  statements  as  a  whole  are  free  from  material  misstatement,
whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  and  to  issue  an  auditor’s  report  that  includes  our  opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including
omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by
a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

The objectives of our compliance audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
form an opinion and report at the level specified in the governmental audit requirement about
whether  the  Authority  complied  in  all  material  respects  with  the  applicable  compliance
requirements  and  identify  audit  and  reporting  requirements  specified  in  the  governmental
audit requirement that are supplementary to GAAS and Government Auditing Standards , if
any, and perform procedures to address those requirements.

Accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America,  (U.S.  GAAP,)  as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)  require that  certain
required supplementary information (“RSI”) such as management’s discussion and analysis
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part  of  the  basic  financial  statements,  is  required  by  the  GASB,  who  considers  it  to  be  an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain
limited  procedures  to  the  required  supplementary  information  (RSI)  in  accordance  with
auditing standards generally accepted in  the United States of America, (U.S. GAAS). These

Exhibit "A"

A-1



Page 2 of 8 

  

limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods 
of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form 
of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected 
to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 
 
1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the Authority’s basic financial 
statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and perform certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the supplementary information to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with 
U.S. GAAS. We intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary information in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole: 
 
1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

 
Data Collection Form 

 
Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data 
Collection Form that are our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, 
amounts and conclusions. It is management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package 
including financial statements, schedule of expenditure of federal awards, summary schedule 
of prior audit findings and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form to the 
federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package must be text searchable, 
unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the 
federal audit clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic submission and certification. 
You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package 
submitted to pass-through entities.  

 
The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt 
of our auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically 
waived by a federal cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted 
untimely are one of the factors in assessing programs at a higher risk. 
 
Auditor Responsibilities 
 
We will conduct our audits in accordance GAAS, the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States of America and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). As part of an audit of financial 
statements in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

A-2



Page 3 of 8 

  

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.2 
However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial 
statements that we have identified during the audit. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of 
internal control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance  
may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the 
United States of America. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective and 
Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse. 
 
Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend 
to any other periods. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Authority’s basic financial 
statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors. Circumstances may arise 
in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our 
audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify 
our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor’s report, 
or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on the basic financial 
statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, 
for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 
opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this 
engagement. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a 
written report describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting 
and over compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including 
the results of that testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance 
over financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion 
will be expressed. 
 
Audit of Major Program Compliance 
 
Our audit of the Authority’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in 
accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform 
Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major programs in 

A-3



Page 4 of 8 

  

accordance with the Uniform Guidance and other procedures we consider necessary to enable 
us to express such an opinion on major federal award program compliance and to render the 
required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance will 
be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion 
or withdraw from the engagement. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether material noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations, the 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs, 
and the applicable compliance requirements occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on the audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 
the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of the federal programs as a whole. 
 
As part of a compliance audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks.  
 
Our procedures will consist of determining major federal programs and, performing the 
applicable procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB 
Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Authority’s major programs, and performing such other 
procedures as we considers necessary in the circumstances. The purpose of those procedures 
will be to express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance with requirements applicable to 
each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform 
Guidance. 
 
Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will obtain an understanding of the Authority’s 
internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design and perform tests of 
controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider 
relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements 
applicable to each of the Authority’s major federal award programs. Our tests will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no 
opinion will be expressed in our report. However, we will communicate to you, regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we have 
identified during the audit. 
 
We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion 
regarding the Authority’s major federal award programs, and a report on internal controls 
over compliance that will report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses 
identified; however, such report will not express an opinion on internal control. 
 
 

A-4



Page 5 of 8 

  

Management Responsibilities 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that 
they have responsibility: 
 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; 

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, 
misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant 
agreements, or contractual agreements; and 

c. To provide us with: 

i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements such as 
records, documentation, and other matters; 

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose 
of the audit;  

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

iv. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to 
issue that will be included in the annual report and the planned timing and 
method of issuance of that annual report; and 

v. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, 
comprise the annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor’s 
report. 

d. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing basic financial 
statements that indicates that such basic financial statements have been audited by 
us; 

e. For identifying and ensuring that the Authority complies with the laws and regulations 
applicable to its activities; 

f. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and 
noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 

g. For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any 
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and 
pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole; and 

h. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee 
nonattest work; 

i. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and 
safeguarding assets; 

j. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the Authority involving 
management, employees with significant role in internal control and others where 
fraud could have a material effect on the financials; and 

k. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided. 
 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and 
understand your responsibility: (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in 
accordance with the applicable criteria; (b) to provide us with the appropriate written 
representations regarding supplementary information; (c) to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary information and 

A-5



Page 6 of 8 

  

that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information; and (d) to present 
the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the 
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, 
to make the audited basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary 
information and our report thereon. 
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management, written confirmation 
concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
Nonattest Services  
 
At the end of the year, we agree to perform the following: 

 Propose adjusting or correcting journal entries detected during the audit, if 
applicable, to be reviewed and approved by the Authority’s management. 

 
We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the Authority. However, we will 
provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the Authority in performing its 
responsibilities.  

 
The Authority’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and 
performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the 
services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting 
responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining 
internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

 
Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 
 

 We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards 
 

  The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its 
sole professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take 
any action that could be construed as making management decisions or assuming 
management responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving 
journal entries. Our firm will advise the Authority with regard to tax positions taken in 
the preparation of the tax return, but the Authority must make all decisions with regard 
to those matters. 

 
Engagement Fees 
 
We estimate that our fixed fees for the services previously outlined will be as follows: 
   
  $ 5,980  
  3,500  
  
 
The single audit fee includes one major program.  If additional programs require auditing, 
they will be added at an additional cost of $2,500 per additional program.  
 
Additionally, our fees are dependent on the availability, quality, and completeness of the 
Authority’s records and, where applicable, upon the Authority’s personnel providing the level 
of assistance identified in the “prepared by client” request list distributed at the end of our 

Audit of Financial Statements 
Single Audit of Federal Awards*

A-6



Page 7 of 8 

  

planning work (e.g., Authority employees preparing confirmations and schedules we request, 
locating documents selected by us for testing, etc.). 
 
Should our assumptions with respect to these matters be incorrect, or should the condition of 
the records, degree of cooperation, or other matters beyond our reasonable control require 
additional commitments by us beyond those upon which our estimated fees are based, we 
may adjust our fees and planned completion dates.  If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee estimate as soon as reasonably 
practicable.   
 
Other Engagement Matters 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via 
fax or e-mail, and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk 
of misdirected or intercepted communications. 
 
Enclosed, as required by Government Auditing Standards, is a copy of the report on the most 
recent peer review of our firm. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, 
knowledge, and experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation 
of the basic financial statements and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are 
deemed a non-audit service. 
 
Jennifer Farr is the engagement partner responsible for supervising the engagement and 
signing the report. 
 
 
During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved 
controls over, your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate 
level of management, either orally or in writing. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you 
may become aware during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the 
financial statements are issued. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least seven 
years from the date of our report. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Directors the 
following significant findings from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the Authority’s significant accounting 
practices; 

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional 

judgment, significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their 
oversight of the financial reporting process; 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management 
as a result of our audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 

A-7



Page 8 of 8 

  

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of 
correspondence, with management. 

 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Davis Farr LLP and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation 
available to regulatory agencies pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to 
peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Davis Farr LLP’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies 
of selected audit documentation to regulatory agencies. The regulatory agencies may intend, 
or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other 
governmental agencies. 
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, 
and agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements 
including our respective responsibilities. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.   
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Jennifer Farr, CPA 
Davis Farr LLP 
 
 
  
 
 
The services and arrangements described in this letter are in accordance with our 
understanding and are acceptable to us. 
 
Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority       
 
 
By___________________________   
 
Title__________________________ 
 
Date__________________________  
 
 

A-8



 

 

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control  

 
Davis Farr LLP 
and the Peer Review Committee of the California Society of CPAs 
 
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Davis Farr LLP 
(the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2022.  Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the 
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).   
 
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review 
as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary.  The summary also includes an 
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported on in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 
 
Firm’s Responsibility 
 
The firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of applicable 
professional standards in all material respects.  The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly 
remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported on in conformity with the requirements of 
applicable professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality 
control, if any. 
 
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the firm’s system of quality 
control based on our review.   
 
Required Selections and Considerations 
 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including a compliance audit under the Single Audit Act; and examination of a service organization (SOC 1 
engagement). 
 
As part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

A-9



Peer Review Report 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Davis Farr LLP in 
effect for the year ended May 31, 2022, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects.  Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail.  Davis Farr LLP 
has received a peer review rating of pass. 
 

GYL LLP 
 
 
Ontario, California 
August 8, 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-10



1 

DEE JASPAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS   
2730 UNICORN ROAD, BLDG A 
BAKERSFIELD, CA  93308    
PHONE (661) 393-4796    
FAX (661) 393-4799    

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

KERN FAN GROUNDWATER STORAGE PROJECT 

PREPARED FOR:   Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority (GBJPA) File 

PREPARED BY: Curtis Skaggs, P.E. 

DATE:   May 1, 2024 

SUBJECT:        Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project – Task No. 1 
Engineering Professional Services 

I. DP#1 “Recharge Basins & Infrastructure” – MCE/AECOM

MCE and AECOM have provided final design drawings for the West Enos
Recharge Basin Facilities and also provided 60% level drawings for the Stockdale
North Recharge Basin Facilities.

The final design drawings for West Enos were utilized to proceed with the
construction of the earthwork for the Recharge Basin Facilities and to proceed
with construction for the basin structures such as the interbasin structures, the
Enos Lane crossing, and the Goose Lake Turnout.

Contracts were executed with Lonnie A. Cross Land Leveling on January 8th,
2024 with a Notice to Proceed date of February 9th, 2024.  As of April 26th,
Lonnie Cross Land Leveling is approximately 51% complete with the earthwork.
They have constructed the levee embankments for Basins 3 and 4 and are
currently working on the levee embankments for Basins 1 and 2.  They are
expected to be completed in late June or early July.

In addition, contracts were executed with All-State Boring on January 26th, 2024
with a Notice to Proceed date of February 29th, 2024.  Material has been delivered
to the project site.  All-State is anticipated to begin work in May or June.

The bid package for the West Enos structures was issued in late February.  Bids
are due May 1, 2024.

MCE has addressed comments received on the 60% level drawings for Stockdale
North and will begin working to final the earthwork plans and structure plans for
bidding purposes.



2 

Schedule: 

Anticipating having completed Recharge Basin earthwork plans and structure 
plans by September 2024 from MCE. 

Next Deliverable: 

• 100% Level Plans for Stockdale North

II. DP#2 “Recovery Wells” – Zeiders

The West Enos Recharge Basin Facilities plans have been provided to Zeiders
Consulting to begin preparation of plans and specifications for the recovery well
facilities on the property.  Zeiders will work with Tom Harder to prepare the well
drilling and well equipping documents for bidding purposes.  These are planned
to include one new well on West Enos, the rehabilitation and use of one existing
agricultural well on West Enos, and two new wells on Stockdale North.  Zeiders
anticipates submitting 90% level plans and specifications for review in August or
September 2024.

Schedule:

Anticipate having 90% level plans and specifications for review by September
2024.

Next Deliverable: 

• 90% Level Plans and Specifications
• 100% Level Plans and Specifications

III. DP#3 (Aqueduct Turnout) and DP#4 (Conveyance Facilities) –
Stantec/Dahl/P&P

Stantec has been working with DWR and HDR on analysis and evaluation of the
Aqueduct’s ability to provide water to the Kern Fan Project.

DWR/HDR performed hydraulic modeling and a delivery capability analysis for
the existing Cross Valley Canal (CVC) turnouts, an independent Kern Fan
turnout, and a joint works alternative modifying the existing Greater Bakersfield
Turnouts.  The hydraulic analyses indicated that the existing CVC turnout is not



3 

impacted by an independent Kern Fan turnout.  The estimated maximum 
hydraulic capacity of the CVC turnout, with and without a Kern Fan turnout, is 
950 cfs at the normal min water surface elevation of the aqueduct (296.53’) and 
1,150 cfs at the normal max water surface elevation of Pool 28 in the aqueduct 
(297.53’).  The joint works alternative was shown to improve conditions such that 
the CVC has a maximum flow of 1,400 cfs and the Kern Fan of 450 cfs for a total 
flow of 1,850 cfs under normal min and normal max water surface elevations in 
Pool 28 of the aqueduct.  The joint works alternative expands the effective 
conveyance capacity of the CVC and therefore, the combined Pool 28 water 
surface elevations and CVC channel capacity no longer limit the CVC hydraulic 
capacity. 

DWR furthermore provided information regarding the capacity of the aqueduct 
and Pool 28 to provide an additional 450 cfs for the Kern Fan Project in a wet 
year.  In an effort to evaluate this, the Article 21 season for 2023 was utilized.  
This season included the duration from March 22nd, 2023 through June 27th, 2023.  
The evaluation demonstrated that there was an available capacity in Pool 28 of a 
minimum of 450 cfs from April 19th, 2023 through June 27th, 2023 or 
approximately 9-10 weeks. 

Next Deliverable: 

• Decision Point on Aqueduct Turnout

IV. Project Management – Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc.

Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc. (DJA) is working with each of the engineering teams
associated with the Design Packages referenced above and managing the project design.

DJA is also providing the construction management and inspection for the West Enos
Recharge Basin Facilities Project.

Schedule:

The construction management for the West Enos Recharge Basin Facilities is anticipated to
continue through June 2024 and then move into the Enos Lane cased crossing, structures, and
pipelines.



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



April 26, 2024 

David Okita, PE 
c/o Department of Water Resources 
715 P Street 
Sacramento, California 95814 

Dear David Okita, PE, 

Reference: Kern Fan Project Conveyance Scenarios 

Thank you for the information provided to date in regards to analysis and evaluation of the Aqueduct’s 
ability to provide water to the Kern Fan Project including, but not limited to, the following: 

• CA Aqueduct – CVC / Joint Works Hydraulic Model Development (Dated October 2023)

• CA Aqueduct Delivery Capability Analyses (Dated February 2024)

• Approximation of Unused 2023 Capacity during Article 21 Season (Dated April 2024)

We would like to request the preparation of a Technical Memorandum or Engineering Report that combines 
and summarizes the findings of the hydraulic model development, delivery capability analyses, and 
availability of unused capacity.  

Should you have any questions or need additional clarification as to the above requested information, 
please call or email me directly.  

Sincerely, 

GROUNDWATER BANKING JOINT POWER AUTHORITY 

Dan Bartel 
General Manager, GBJPA 



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



DEE JASPAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS   
2730 UNICORN ROAD, BLDG A 
BAKERSFIELD, CA  93308    
PHONE (661) 393-4796    
FAX (661) 393-4799    

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

April 29, 2024 

Dan Bartel, General Manager 
Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District 
849 Allen Road 
Bakersfield, CA 93314 

Re: Kern Fan Groundwater Banking Project – Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
Progress Payment No. 5 

Mr. Bartel, 

Attached is Progress Payment No. 5 from Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for the above 
referenced project.  The approved amount to be paid for Progress Payment No. 5 is $23,179.00  
The amount billed for this period pertains to the Conveyance Alignment Alternatives Analyses 
work specifically related to Alternative No. 5 for the Joint Works Project.  This included data 
review, participation in project meetings, and correspondence with DWR. 

Sincerely, 

Curtis M. Skaggs, P.E. 
Project Manager 



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



Invoice No. Invoice Date Budget Amount Amount Invoiced Budget Remaining Percent Remaining

1969096 24‐Aug‐22 200,683.00$         32,267.20$              168,415.80$   84%

2000677 11‐Nov‐22 63,620.35$              104,795.45$   52%

2047766 28‐Feb‐23 57,609.11$              47,186.34$   24%

2123012 28‐Aug‐23 16,283.50$              30,902.84$   15%

2193679 12‐Feb‐24 23,179.00$              7,723.84$   4%

Design Package #3 (Aqueduct Turnout) and Design Package #4 (Conveyance Facilities)

Stantec/Dahl/P&P

Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project

Task No. 1 ‐ Conveyance Alignment Alternatives Analyses



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



 INVOICE Page 1 of 3

Invoice Number  
Invoice Date 
Customer Number 
Project Number

2193679
February 12, 2024 

182110
 184031630

Net Due in 30 Days or in accordance with terms of the contract

Bill To
Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority 
Dan Bartel 
c/o Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District 
849 Allen Road 
Bakersfield  CA 93314 
United States

Please Remit To
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (SCSI) 
13980 Collections Center Drive
Chicago IL 60693
United States
Federal Tax ID
11-2167170

Project Description: Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project - Task Group 1

Stantec Project Manager: Long, Joseph F
Authorization Amount: $200,683.00
Authorization Previously Billed: $169,780.16
Authorization Budget Remaining: $7,723.84
Authorization Billed to Date: $192,959.16
Current Invoice Due: $23,179.00
For Period Ending: February 2, 2024



 INVOICE Page 2 of 3

2193679Invoice Number 
Project Number 184031630

Top Task 100 Project Management and Coordination

Low Task 100.1 Project Management and Coordination

Professional Services

Billing Level Hours Rate Current
Amount

Project Professional 
Smer, Marla Jo McGee 1.00 175.00 175.00

1.00 175.00

 Project Manager 
Long, Joseph F 1.00 275.00 275.00

1.00 275.00

Professional Services Subtotal 2.00 450.00

Low Task 100.1 Subtotal 450.00

Low Task 100.3 Joint-Works Turnout with Cross Valley-Concept Level Evaluation

Professional Services

Billing Level Hours Rate Current
Amount

Assistant Professional 
Pendergast, Cooper S 61.00 136.00 8,296.00
Vu, Annie K (August) 3.00 136.00 408.00

64.00 8,704.00

 Project Manager 
Long, Joseph F 51.00 275.00 14,025.00

51.00 14,025.00

Professional Services Subtotal 115.00 22,729.00

Low Task 100.3 Subtotal 22,729.00

Top Task 100 Total 23,179.00



 INVOICE Page 3 of 3

2193679Invoice Number 
Project Number 184031630

Total Fees & Disbursements $23,179.00

INVOICE TOTAL (USD) $23,179.00



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



DEE JASPAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS   
2730 UNICORN ROAD, BLDG A 
BAKERSFIELD, CA  93308    
PHONE (661) 393-4796    
FAX (661) 393-4799    

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

April 26, 2024 

Dan Bartel 
c/o Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority (GBJPA) 
849 Allen Road 
Bakersfield, CA 93314 

Re:  West Enos Recharge Facilities 
        Weekly Report (Week 11) 

Mr. Bartel, 

This serves as a project update for Week 11 of the West Enos Recharge Facilities 
Emergency Project. 

Project Status as of: 4-26-24 Contract Totals 
Notice to Proceed1: 2-9-24 Contract Amount: $1,148,849.53 
Contract Duration: 150 Change Orders: - 
Completion Date: 7-8-24 Revised Amount: - 

Elapsed Days: 77 Work Completed: $286,321.25 
Remaining Days: 73 % Completed: 51% 

Change Order – 
Days: 

- 

1Notice to Proceed was set for January 22, 2024, however the District delayed the start to make sure all 
provisions of the grant agreement were being followed.  Lonnie Cross started work on February 9th after the 
biological clearances and training. 

Lonnie Cross Land Leveling is currently the only contractor on-site.  Allstate Boring has 
delivered the 48-inch diameter steel casing material to the job site – approximately twelve (12) 
forty-foot joints.  The bids for structures including interbasin structures, Enos Lane crossing, and 
Goose Lake Channel turnout are due May 1st, 2024.  RRBWSD had the four interbasin structures 
delivered to the job site as well. 

Lonnie Cross Land Leveling continued working in the area of Basins 1 and 2.  They have 
worked a little bit on fine grading of the northeasterly levee embankment and the northerly levee 
embankment of Basin 2 and focused efforts on construction of the levee between Basins 1 and 2. 

They have over-excavated the 12-inch subgrade to 5-ft beyond the toe of levee slopes for 
the westerly levee parallel to the railroad tracks and excavated the 4-ft deep keyway beneath that 
embankment.  They have backfilled and compacted the keyway along the westerly end of Basin 



1 and are currently working on backfill and compaction of the levee embankment for the levee 
between Basins 1 and 2. 

They have been moisture conditioning and borrowing material from the bottom of Basin 
1 and 2.  All borrow material is being mixed and appears to be relatively uniform.   

Soils Engineering, Inc. (SEI) was on-site daily this week performing compaction testing 
of the keyway and the levee embankment fill for the levee between Basin 1 and Basin 2 and the 
levee parallel to the railroad tracks.  The moisture conditions have been right around optimum.  
All compaction testing met the minimum required compaction and passed. 

Figure 1:  Map of Project Progress 

Sincerely, 

Curtis M. Skaggs, P.E. 



Pictures (4-22-24 thru 4-26-24) 

Excavation of Keyway along Westerly Levee of Basin 2 



Sloping Sides of 4-ft Deep Keyway 



Excavation of Keyway for Levee between Basins 1 and 2 



Backfill and Compaction of Keyway for Westerly Levee of Basin 1 



Backfill and Compaction of Keyway to Original Grade 



Levee Embankment Fill for Westerly Levee of Basin 1 



Backfill and Compaction of Levee Embankment for Northerly Levee of Basin 1 



Levee Embankment Fill of Basin 1 – Basin 2 Northerly Levee Looking East 



1 

DEE JASPAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS   
2730 UNICORN ROAD, BLDG A 
BAKERSFIELD, CA  93308    
PHONE (661) 393-4796    
FAX (661) 393-4799    

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

May 2, 2024 

Dan Bartel, General Manager 
c/o Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority 
849 Allen Road 
Bakersfield, CA  93314 

Re: West Enos Recharge Facilities  - Structures 
Bid Proposal Review and Recommendation 

Mr. Bartel: 

Bids were received for the above referenced project and opened at the Rosedale-Rio 
Bravo Water Storage District office on May 1st, 2024 at 2:00 pm.  The bid results are shown in 
Exhibit A attached hereto.

RLH Fire Protection, Inc. (RLH) was the apparent low bidder in the amount of one 
million five hundred and forty-seven thousand two hundred and thirty dollars and 00/100’s - 
$1,547,230.00.  RLH submitted the appropriate bid documents including: 

• Bid Form
• Schedule of Work Items
• Statements by Bidder
• Certification of Bidder and Qualifications
• Safety Program Certification
• Non-Collusion Declaration
• Bid Security Declaration
• Bid Bond (10%)
• Addenda Acknowledgements

The bid proposal submitted by RLH has been reviewed and it appears that they have
submitted all the necessary bid information and that their bid is correct. A copy of their bid is 
attached in Exhibit B attached hereto.  They are a Class “A” General Contractor located in 
Bakersfield, California.  Their contractor’s license is active and in good standing.  They have 
several years’ experience with these types of projects.  They did not list any subcontractor’s for 
this project. 

The Engineer’s Estimate for the bid was $1,404,425.00.  The apparent low bidder, RLH 
Fire Protection, is approximately 10% above the Engineer’s Estimate, however their bid is in-
line with the other bidders and appears correct.  It is recommended that the project be awarded to 
RLH Fire Protection, Inc. in the amount of $1,547,230.00 and that a pre-construction meeting be 
arranged upon award and execution of the contract documents. 



2 

Sincerely, 

Curtis M. Skaggs, PE 



3 

EXHIBIT A 

BID SUMMARY 





Item No. Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost

1 Mobilization, Demobilization, and Clean‐Up 1 LS $55,000.00 $55,000.00 36,300.00$                      36,300.00$                                 103,000.00$               103,000.00$                          40,273.00$                 40,273.00$                                    133,000.00$                 133,000.00$                                    75,000.00$                75,000.00$                             

2 Install District Furnished Interbasin Structures 4 EA $66,000.00 $264,000.00 61,500.00$                      246,000.00$                               75,000.00$                 300,000.00$                          116,457.00$               465,828.00$                                 115,000.00$                 460,000.00$                                    116,600.00$              466,400.00$                           

3 Furnish & Install 27" PIP SDR 51 Carrier Pipeline & Appurenances 200 LF $137.50 $27,500.00 600.00$                            120,000.00$                               260.00$                       52,000.00$                            758.00$                       151,600.00$                                 500.00$                         100,000.00$                                    480.00$                      96,000.00$                             

4 Furnish & Install 42" IPS DR32.5 HDPE Carrier Pipeline & Appurenances 630 LF $247.50 $155,925.00 305.00$                            192,150.00$                               265.00$                       166,950.00$                          345.00$                       217,350.00$                                 700.00$                         441,000.00$                                    1,390.00$                   875,700.00$                           

5 Backfill & Compact Boring and Receiving Pits 1 LS $165,000.00 $165,000.00 20,900.00$                      20,900.00$                                 40,000.00$                 40,000.00$                            45,156.00$                 45,156.00$                                    110,000.00$                 110,000.00$                                    80,000.00$                80,000.00$                             

6 Install District Furnished Headwall Structure and Appurtenances for Enos Lane Crossing 1 LS $71,500.00 $71,500.00 170,700.00$                    170,700.00$                               105,000.00$               105,000.00$                          122,576.00$               122,576.00$                                 170,000.00$                 170,000.00$                                    130,000.00$              130,000.00$                           

7 Furnish & Install Outlet Structure and Appurtenances for Enos Lane Crossing 1 LS $27,500.00 $27,500.00 17,000.00$                      17,000.00$                                 26,000.00$                 26,000.00$                            34,795.00$                 34,795.00$                                    50,000.00$                    50,000.00$                                       77,000.00$                77,000.00$                             

8 Install District Furnished Goose Lake Channel Turnout Structure and Appurtenances 1 LS $71,500.00 $71,500.00 119,000.00$                    119,000.00$                               113,000.00$               113,000.00$                          139,534.00$               139,534.00$                                 240,400.00$                 240,400.00$                                    202,000.00$              202,000.00$                           

9 Furnish & Install Goose Lake Channel Turnout Piping & Appurtenances 1 LS $60,500.00 $60,500.00 131,600.00$                    131,600.00$                               125,000.00$               125,000.00$                          157,029.00$               157,029.00$                                 210,000.00$                 210,000.00$                                    298,000.00$              298,000.00$                           

10 Furnish & Install Goose Lake Channel Turnout Outlet and Appurtenances 1 LS $27,500.00 $27,500.00 47,400.00$                      47,400.00$                                 26,000.00$                 26,000.00$                            43,327.00$                 43,327.00$                                    100,000.00$                 100,000.00$                                    74,000.00$                74,000.00$                             

11 Furnish & Install 27" PIP SDR 51 Recovery Pipeline & Appurtenances 3240 LF $137.50 $445,500.00 132.00$                            427,680.00$                               159.00$                       515,160.00$                          173.00$                       560,520.00$                                 265.00$                         858,600.00$                                    200.00$                      648,000.00$                           

12 Final Record Drawings 1 LS $11,000.00 $11,000.00 1,500.00$                         1,500.00$                                    1,000.00$                   1,000.00$                              2,200.00$                   2,200.00$                                      20,000.00$                    20,000.00$                                       2,500.00$                   2,500.00$                               

13 Builder's Risk All Risk Insurance 1 LS $16,500.00 $16,500.00 6,000.00$                         6,000.00$                                    10,000.00$                 10,000.00$                            10,831.00$                 10,831.00$                                    20,000.00$                    20,000.00$                                       2,500.00$                   2,500.00$                               

14 Mitigation Monitoring 1 LS $5,500.00 $5,500.00 11,000.00$                      11,000.00$                                 2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                              8,641.00$                   8,641.00$                                      20,000.00$                    20,000.00$                                       2,500.00$                   2,500.00$                               

Base Bid: $1,404,425 Base Bid: 1,547,230.00$                           Base Bid: 1,585,110.00$                      Base Bid: 1,999,660.00$                              Base Bid: 2,933,000.00$                                 Base Bid: 3,029,600.00$                       

Concrete BMV, Inc. Pipe Jacking All‐State Boring

Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority

WEST ENOS RECHARGE FACILITIES EMERGENCY PROJECT ‐ STRUCTURES
Bid Summary

Bidder 2 Bidder 3 Bidder 4 Bidder 5

Subcontractor List

Low Bidder
RLH Fire Protection, Inc.Engineer's Estimate Nicholas Construction, Inc. Unified Field Services Corporation HPS Mechanical, Inc. W.M. Lyles Co.



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



4 

EXHIBIT B 

BID DOCUMENTS 











































 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



5/3/2024



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 











2024-05-13 jpa.5c. 1Small StorageFundingConcept_051424.docx

May 13, 2024 
Prepared by: Fiona Sanchez 
Agenda Item: 5c 

Small Storage Program Funding Update 

DISCUSSION: 

Background: 

The Bureau of Reclamation provides grant funding to eligible projects under the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Small Storage Program.  The Groundwater Banking Joint 
Powers Authority (GBJPA) has already been awarded a total of $8.6 million in Small 
Surface Water and Groundwater Storage Projects (Small Storage Program) for Phase 1 
of the Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project.  Based on the project benefits, the 
combined awards have maximized the available federal funding for the Phase 1 project.  
Staff anticipates a new round of Small Storage Program funding becoming available and 
has worked with consultant Dee Jaspar and Associates (DJA) to develop a new separate 
project concept that could be positioned for additional federal funding. 

Background: 

The Bureau of Reclamation’s Small Storage Program provides up to 25% of the total cost 
of planning, design and/or construction incurred for storage projects up to a maximum of 
$30 million per project.  Applicants must fund the other 75% of the project cost.  Project 
storage cannot exceed 30,000 acre-feet. 

In December 2022, the GBJPA submitted an application requesting $9.8 million in federal 
funding, to develop and construct Phase 1 of the Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project 
(Kern Fan Project).  The Phase 1 Project includes the following components: 

• Construction of approximately 300 acres of recharge basins on the West Enos and
Stockdale North properties;

• Well drilling and equipping of four conjunctive use recovery wells.  Two would be
located on West Enos and two on Stockdale North; and

• New water conveyance and turnout facilities to connect the new wells with existing
delivery facilities.

The GBJPA was selected for a funding award in the amount of $4.7 million and executed 
a funding agreement with Reclamation in October 2023.  In March 2024, the project was 
awarded an additional $3.9 million in a second round of funding.  The combined funding 
awarded for the project has now been maximized based on the total project benefits, and 
no further federal funding could be awarded to Phase 1. 

2024 Small Storage Program Funding 

Staff anticipates that Reclamation will release another Small Storage Program funding 
opportunity in Fall 2024.  Staff and consultants at Dee Jaspar & Associates (DJA) have 
developed a concept for a new “stand-alone” small storage project that would provide 



Information Item:  Small Storage Program Funding Update 
May 13, 2024 
Page 2 

new benefits, and therefore be eligible for funding, provided as Exhibit “A”.  The new 
project concept includes the following components: 

• New allocated storage of 30,000 AF;
• New conveyance off the California Aqueduct to deliver 250-300 cfs; and
• New turnout from the California Aqueduct, located in Pool 28, to be either a

modification of the existing Cross Valley Canal turnout or a new separate turnout.

The preliminary estimated capital cost is $109.1 million.  Projects can be awarded up to 
$30 million based on benefits.  Staff is preparing a feasibility study for submittal to the 
Bureau of Reclamation this summer.  An approved feasibility study is required in order to 
be eligible for federal funding. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive and file. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – Draft Small Storage Program Project Concept 



Exhibit “A” 

Draft Small Storage Program Project Concept 

The Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project (Project) consists of a regional water bank in the 
Kern County Groundwater Sub-basin of the San Joaquin Groundwater Basin in Kern County, 
California that will provide water supply, groundwater and agricultural benefits.  Project 
facilities will be planned, designed, constructed, owned, and operated by the Groundwater 
Banking Joint Powers Authority (GBJPA) that consists of representatives from the Irvine Ranch 
Water District (IRWD) and the Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District (RRBWSD).  

The Project will be supplied primarily by the State Water Project’s supplies that exceed the SWP 
Contractors allocation during a wet year (Article 21 supplies) and also by other wet-year water 
supplies as available.  In wet years, when it is declared available by the California Department of 
Water Resources (DWR), the GBJPA will take delivery of Article 21 supplies to store in the 
Project. IRWD and RRBWSD will equally share the storage associated with the Project.   

Other water supplies that could be available for the Project include other SWP supplies diverted 
from the California Aqueduct, as well as other supply sources including Central Valley Project 
Section 215 flood water and high-flow Kern River water.  

The Project objectives are to cost-efficiently recharge and store excess surface water supplies, 
that would otherwise be lost to the ocean, in a groundwater bank for subsequent recovery to 
address the following: 

• Enhance water supply reliability;
• Reduce imported water demands on the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento –San Joaquin

Delta Estuary (Delta) to benefit spring and winter-run Chinook salmon;
• Provide water supply during drought conditions;
• Provide water supply for emergency response benefits;
• Establish temporary wetlands through intermittent recharge events that will attract

migratory and other water fowl in Kern County;
• Benefit the water levels in the Kern County Groundwater Sub-basin;
• Provide sustainable water supply for local agricultural use; and
• Be integrated into other water storage projects and storage reservoirs to provide greater

statewide benefits.

A conveyance facility will be constructed to convey water from the California Aqueduct to 
existing and planned recharge basins referred to as the West Basins, the Enns Basins, McCaslin 
Basins, and a property to be purchased. 



2 Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc. 

The project objective of the conveyance facility is to deliver approximately 250-300 cfs of water 
from the California Aqueduct to approximately 970-acres of land for groundwater recharge 
facilities.   

• West Basins 324 Acres of Recharge 75 cfs 
• New Property 300 Acres of Recharge 75 cfs 
• Enns 175 Acres of Recharge 55 cfs 
• McCaslin Basins 172 Acres of Recharge 52 cfs 

This will allow the project to convey approximately 300 cfs for approximately one to two 
months and store up to an additional 30,000 acre-feet of water per year in wet years.  The new 
conveyance facility will not only provide water to the new recharge property (+/- 300 acres), but 
also convey water to existing recharge basins that have excess capacity due to limitations on 
conveyance from other sources of water.  It is also desirable for the proposed conveyance facility 
from the Aqueduct to the recharge facilities to be capable of reverse flow for times when water is 
being recovered.   

The conveyance project includes a new turnout from the California Aqueduct.  The proposed 
turnout would be located in Pool 28 or Reach 12E of the California Aqueduct near the existing 
Kern County Water Agency - Cross Valley Canal Turnout (Greater Bakersfield Turnout No. 1) 
located at Milepost 238.04 and Check No. 28.  The new project turnout may be a modification of 
the existing Cross Valley Canal Turnout, referred to as the Joint Works Alternative, or it may be 
a standalone turnout that is located approximately 600-ft north of the existing Cross Valley Canal 
Turnout.    The standalone turnout would be a reinforced concrete structure with galvanized steel 
trashrack, slide gate, and metering.     

The conveyance alignment is supplied by a new Aqueduct Turnout structure with one eleven-
foot (11-ft) diameter pipe across and beneath the DWR right-of-way and the Outlet Canal.  The 
Joint Works alternative would involve modifying the existing Cross Valley Canal turnout and 
constructing transition structures and a double box siphon to get under the Outlet Canal. The 
conveyance alignment then crosses the State of California property for the Tule Elk Reserve 
(APN 159-180-05) through Section 24 and into Section 19 where the facilities enter Kern Water 
Bank Authority property.  The conveyance alignment remains on Kern Water Bank Authority 
property through Section 19, Section 18, Section 7, into Section 6, across the Interstate 5 
Freeway, into Section 5, across Stockdale Hwy, and onto private property until it reaches the 
proposed West Basin recharge facilities and the Goose Lake Channel to convey water to Enns, 
McCaslin, and a property to be purchased, see Figure 1 below.  



3 Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc. 

Figure 1:  Conveyance Alignment 

The conveyance may be a 10-ft diameter RCP pipeline, an open canal with an 
approximate cross-section with a 10-ft wide bottom, 12-ft depth, 1.5:1 side slopes, 
and a top width of 46-ft, or some combination thereof. 

The above alignment crosses the following properties: 

APN 159-200-05, 24-30/24, State of California – Aqueduct 
APN 159-180-05, 24-30/24, State of California – Tule Elk Preserve 
APN 160-100-07, 19-30/25, Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-100-08, 19-30/25, Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-090-02, 18-30/25, Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-090-01, 18-30/25, Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-040-02, 7-30/25,   Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-030-14, 6-30/25,   Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-030-12, 5-30/25,   Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 160-030-03, 5-30/25,   Kern Water Bank Authority 
APN 104-270-06, 32-29/25, Bos Family Trust, Dairy – PM 1342, Lot A 
APN 104-260-15, 29-29/25, Bos Family Trust, Agricultural Zoning 
APN 104-260-16, 29-29/25, Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District 



4 Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc. 

APN 104-260-13, 29-29/25, Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District 

The permitting associated with the above alignment will include: 

Aqueduct Turnout: DWR Right-of-Entry Permit 
DWR/Owner/KCWA Construction Agreement 
DWR/Owner/KCWA Operations Agreement 

Outlet Canal: Army Corp of Engineers Section 404 Permit 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Calif. Dept. of Fish & Wildlife Section 1601 Streambed 
Alteration  
United States Fish & Wildlife Service 
Buena Vista Water Storage District Joint Use of Easement 

State Parks:  Tule Elk Preserve Crossing Agreement 

Interstate 5 Fwy: Caltrans Encroachment Permit 

Stockdale Hwy: Caltrans Encroachment Permit 

General: State Incidental Take Permit 
Federal Incidental Take Permit (Coverage under KWBA 
Master Agreement) 
Habitat Conservation Plan Approvals/Fees 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District  

The Class 3 capital cost estimate for the conveyance alignment has been 
evaluated.  The cost estimate includes the costs of the turnout, conveyance 
facilities, pump stations, recharge and recovery facilities, and all associated 
appurtenances. 

Table 1 
Conveyance Capital Cost Summary 

Item # Project Alternative Cost Estimate 
1 Aqueduct Turnout Facility $7,500,000 
2 Conveyance Right-of-Way & HCP Fees $9,900,000 
3 Conveyance Facility $27,500,000 
4 Conveyance Structures/Crossings $16,500,000 
5 Pump Station Facilities $27,500,000 
6 Recharge Property Purchase (+/- 300 acres) $7,500,000 
7 Recharge Facility Earthwork & Structures $4,200,000 
8 Recovery Wells & Pipelines $8,200,000 
9 SCADA $300,000 

$109,100,000 


	GBJPA Agenda
	No. 3A - Draft Special Meeting Minutes
	No. 4A - FY 2023-24 Quarterly Actual to Budget Results
	Exhibit A_Actual to Budget FY2024 Q3

	No. 4B - GBJPA Proposed FY2024-25 Budget
	Exhibit A

	No. 4C - Recommendation of Independent Audit Firm_FY2024
	Exhibit A

	No. 5A i. - Diamond FINAL - AEJ1483
	No. 5A ii. - GBJPA REQUEST FOR REPORT 4-24-24
	No. 5A ii. - Progress Payment No. 5 Approval
	No. 5A iii. - Weekly Report 4-26-24 (Week 11)
	No. 5A iv. - Bid Recommendation West Enos
	Exhibit A (Bid Summary)
	Exhibit B (Bid Documents)

	No. 5A v. 2024-05-13 jpa.5av. Change Order No 1 Stockdale GBJPA
	No. 5C - Small Storage Funding Update
	Exhibit A




